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INDEPRENBENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Manakin Resosls Peivate Limiied
Repori on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audiled the accompanying Ind AS fmncial statcmenis of Manakin Resoris Privale
Limited (“the Compamy™}, which comprise the Bafaince Shect as at March 31, 2017, (he Stalement of
Profil and Loss. inchuding the statcment of Other Comprehensive Tncome, the Cash Flow Slatemenl
and the Statement of Changes in Equily Tor the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policics and other exphinatery information.

Wi agage ment’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Direclors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section 134(3) ol the
Companies Aci. 2013 (“the Act™)with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financipl slatements
thal give a tme and fair view ol the financil position, linancial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled i India, including, the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS)specificd under section 133 of the Act,, read with fthe Companies (Fudinn Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes mainlepance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of the Company
and for preventing and defecting frauds and other itegulities: sclection and application of
appropriate accounting policies: waking judgments and estinates thal are reasanablc and pradent; and
the desigi. implement:tion and mainlenance of adequalte inlernal financial control that were operating
effectively For ensuring the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, relevant o the
preparation and presentation of the fnd AS linancial stalements that give a true and fair view and are
free from maleriat misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on these IND AS financial statements based on our audil,
We have laken into account the provisions of the Actl the accounting and audiling standards and
matlers which arc required to be included in the audil teport under the provisions of the Act and the
Rulkes made thercunder, We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial slalcmeuts in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Instiic of Charlered Acconnlants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards roquire that we comply with ethical
requircents and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance abou whether the
linancin] statements are free from naterial misstatement.

An audit fivolves performing procedures (o oblain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemcrd. of the Ind AS financiaf statements, whether due o
{raud or error. In waking lhose risk asscssmenis. the auditor cousiders internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial stalcments that give a true and lair view
in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also nchides
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and (he reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by (he Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presenlation of the Ind
AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaived is sufficient and
appropriate o provide a basis for our audil opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Jain Jindal & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

Opinion

In our opinion and fo the best of our iformation and according to the explnations given to us. the
Ind AS financial sistements give the information required by the Act in the maaner so reqaired and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles genetally accepied in India. of
the slate of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2017, ils profii including other comprelensive
incame. s cash fows and (he changes inequity For the year ended on (hal date. -

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2,

{(#)

(b)

{c)

(&)

(O

(g

As required by the Companies (Audilor’s reporl) Order. 201o("the Order”) issued by the Centeal
Govermuent of Indin in terms of sub-section (H1) of scction 143 of the Aclt, we give i the
Annesure | a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ol the Order,

As required by scction 143 (3) of the Act. we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which @ the best ol our
knowledge and belicf were nceessaty for the purposc of our audi;

It our opinion, proper boaks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as il appears rom our examination ol those books:

The Bakance Sheet. Staicment of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
fncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Repont
are inagreement with the books of account;

in our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statemcuts comply with the Accounting Standards
specilicd muler section 133 of the Acl read wilth Companies (hudian: Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2015, as amended;

On (he basis of wrillen wepresentalions received from the dircctors as on March 31. 2017, and
taken on recoxd by the Board of Directors, nome of the directors is disgualificd as on
March 31, 2017, [tom being appoinied as a,direclor i terms of section 164 (2) of the Act:

Wilh tespect to fhe adequacy of the ilcral financial controls over inancial reporting of the
Company and the operating cffectivencss of such controls. refer to our separate Repotd in
“Anncxnre 27 {o {his report

With respect {o the other matters (o be inchded in the Audilor’s Repori in accordance with
Rule 1) of {he Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rufes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according (o the explanaiions given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position i its
[nd AS financial staternents — Refer Node 27 to the Ind AS Mancial stalements

ii. The Company did not have any long-lerm conlracts inchiding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii There were no amowns which were required to be transfesred fo the hivestor Education and
Projection Fund by the Conmpany.




Jain Jindal & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

f. The Company has provided requisiie disclosnres in Nole 33 to these Tnd AS fwancial
statements as to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December
30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8.
2016 (0 December 30, 2016, Based on our audil procedures and relying on the manapement
represeitation regarding the holding and nature ol cash transactions, nchuding Specilicd
Bank Nofes, we report thal these disclosures are in accordance with the books ol accounts
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Mapagement.,

Oriher Matter

The comparative financial information ol the Company for the year ended March 31. 2016 and the
transilion date opening balance sheet as at April 01. 2015 included i these standalone Ind AS
financial statcments, are. based on the previously ssued stafutory financial statemeals prepared in
accordance with the Companics (Accounting Standardsy Rules. 2006 andited by the predecessor
auditor whose report for the year endad March 31, 20 16and March 31, 2015 dated June 14,2016and
June 16, 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial stalements. as adjusted
for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the fnd AS.
which have been audited by us.

For Jain Jindal & Co,
Firm Registration No: 0258 17N
Charlered Accountantss
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Romesh Vijay

Partner

Membership No,: 411274
Place: New Delhi

Date: Jue 12,2017
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(Chartered Accountants) Buard: +91 1244252720

Annexure | referced to in parageaph 1 ounder the heading “Report on other legal and

regulatory requirements” of our report of even datke

Re: Manalin Resoris Private Limited (“the Company™)

(M

(il

(ii)

(iv)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

a) The Company is mainiaining proper records showing full pariiculrs. ncluding
quantitative details nnd situation of fixed assels.

by The Company has physically verificd (he fixed assels al reasonable intcrvals, there
were no material discrepancy during the physical verificalion of fixed asscts.

¢y The company is holding (he title deeds of immovable properties in its namc.

The management has conducled physical verification of inventory al reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noficed on physical verification,

The Company has nol granted any loan during the year o a company covered in the
repister maintained under section 189 ol the Companies Act. 2013, Accondingly,
provisions of, clause 3(iiy (a). (b) and (¢) of the Order are ot applicable to (he Compauy.

The compatry has nel made any loans, inveshinents, guaranices, and sceurities during the
vear Uhws the provision of clause 3 (v} is not applicable.

The Company has not accepied any deposits front the public,

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the centraf government has nol prescribed
the mamicnance of cost records under sub-section (1) ol section 148 of the Companies
Act 2013,

a) Undisputed statutory ducs inchiding providenl fund, cmployee slate inswance, labour
wellare fund. income -tay, wealth-tax. service tax, value added tax, ¢ess and other material
statutory ducs have generally been regufarly deposited with the appropriate authorilics
though (here has been a slight defay in a few cases. The provisions related {o cxeise and
cusloms duly are not applicable (o the Comupany.

B According o information and cxplanation given to us, there are no undisputed amounts
pavable in respect of income (ax, sales tax, weallh tax, service lax, cxcise duty cess and
otlier matcrial statutory dues were outstanding for a period of more (han six months Irom
the date they begome pavable.

¢) According to (he records of the Company, there are no dues ol income lax, sales fax.
weallh tax, service (ax. excise duly and cess which have not been deposited on accomt of
any dispule.

The company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of bank, financial institutions
of debenture hiolders during the year.




Jain Jindal & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

{xii)

(iii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Comwany has nol raised any noneys by way ol initial public offer ar further public
offer (ncluding debl instruments) and there are no lerny ans outstanding during the year,

To the best of cur lawwledge no fraud is conamitted by the company or any fraud on (he
compaty by its officers or employees has been voticed or reported during the year.

The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year is i accordance
with the requisite approvals maudaled by the provisions ol sectibn FY7 read with
Scheduls V to e Companies Act.

The company is nol a Nidhi Company so Nidhi Rules, 2014 arc not applicable to the
COMPany,

Adl trnsactions enlored during, the vear with the relaled party are in compliance with the
provisions of sections 188 and section [770f Companies Act. 2013 and where applicable
and (he details with respect to all relaled party (ransactions have been disclosed i the
Financial Slatements as required by applicable accounting standards.

The company has not made any preferentiaf alotment o private placement of shares or
fully or partially converlible debenlures

The Company has nol entered info any non-cash transaction with the divector or person
connecied with director as sequired under section 192 of The Companies Act, 2013,

The company is not required 1o be registered mudes section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank o
Endin. 1934,

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Charlered Accounlanis

|
Yo

Romesh Vijay

Partner

Membership Number: 411274

ICAT Firm chislrz}lion Nutnber: Q2a847N.,
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Place: New Delhi
Dale: June 122017
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AURITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS OF MANAKIN RESORTS PRIVATE EIMITED

Reporton the Tnternal Financial Contiols under Claose (i) ofSub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe
Companics Act, 2003 (“the Act”)

We have andited the internal financial controls over financial repoiting of Manakin Resorts Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standatonc
finnocial stxtements of the Company Tor the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining inlerml Gnancial
conirols based on “the internal comtrol over financial repotting critetia cstablished by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Totermal Financial Contrals Over Fimanciat Reporting issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants
of India”, These responsibilitics include the desipn, implementation and maintenance ol adequate
internal Financial controls that were operating effcclively for cosuring the orderly and efficient
conduc( of its business, including adherence to company’s palicics, the safeguarding of its assels. the
prevention and detection of frauds and ervors. the accuracy add completencss of the accaunting
records. and the timely preparation of refiable financial information. as required under the Companies
Acl. 2013,

Anditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on (he Company's inlcrnal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Nole on Audit
of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by [CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act.
2013, 1o the extent applicable 1o an audil of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Tnternal Financinl Controls and, both issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountanls ol Indi. Those
Siandards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internal financial controls
over financial reporting was cslablished and maintained and if such controls aperated effectively in il
malcrial respecls.

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtain andit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
finsncial controls system over (nancil reporting and their operating elfectivencss. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financhl reporting inclided obtaining an understanding of jnternal
financial controls over fimancinl reporiing. assessing the risk thal a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaloating (he design and operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assesscd
risk. The procedures sclected depend on the anditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks
of muterial misstatemend of (he financial statements, whether due {o fraud or crror.

We belicve that the audil evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to providc a basis
for our auctit opinion on the Company’s infernal fnancial controls sysicmn over financial reporting,

Meaning of Tuternal Financial Contols Oy

gr

financia Reporting




Jain Jindal & Co

(Chartered  Accountan [S)

A compamy's inlernal financial control over financial reporling is a process designed Lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of (nancisk
statements for external purposes it accordance with pencrafly accepted accounting principles, A
company's internal fimncial control over fmancial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that (1) peitain o the maintenance of records that. in reasonable delatl, accwralely and fairly rellect
the transactions and dispositions of (he assets of the company: (2) provide reasomble agsurance thal
(ransaclions are recorded as necessary 1o permil preparation of financial slatements in accordance w ith
penerally accepled accounting principles. and (hat receipts and expenditurcs of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and dircctors of the company: and (3)
provide reasomable assurance regasding prevention or timely delection of unauthorised acguisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on ihe linancial
slatemeis.

Tnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Re porting
1 !

Because of (e inhorent Lmitations of mlernal Mmanciat controls over fancial reperting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of cotrols. maleri] misstatements due to
crior or fraed may occur and uot be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of he infetrnal
Ciancial controls over [inancial reporting to lulure periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporling may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policics o procedures may deterioraic.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all matesial respects. an adequafe internal financial controls
system over financial veporting and such intcrnal financial contiols over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, bascd on “the internal control over Tinancial reporiing
criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential composnents of internal controt staled in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institule of Chartered Accountan(s of India™

For Jain Jindd & Co,
Fum chmlmlton No 025817N

Bomesh Vijuy
Partner
Membership No.; 411274
Place: New Dclhi

Date: June 12, 2017



Manakin Resorts Private Liméted
Bulance Sheet as ot Mareh 31, 2017

Muwrel 31, 2087

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs m Jakhs
ASSETS
Nou-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 3 778,13 82321 B6G.A8
Intangible assels 4 1,15 1.47 1.27
Financial assets 5
Other financial assets 14,69 i4.28 1142
Other non-current assets 6 35.86 35,61 3782
829.83 874.57 919.99
Current assets X
Inventories 7 4.45 5.39 4,89
Financial asscls 8
Trade receivables 25.42 7.57 9.61
Cash and Cash equivalents 59.10 39.1¢ 61.04
Loans 440.67 440.67 44467
Other financial assels 6,45 5.56 5.24
Investments 5 128.59 71.01 -
Qther current assels 9 21,19 13.93 735
685.87 583.23 532.64
Total Assets 1,515.70 1,457.80 1,452.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily Share capilal i0 571.43 57t.43 571.43
Other Equity il 866.19 §21.37 830,30
Total Eguity 1.437.62 1,392.80 140773
Liabilities
Non-current Kabilities
Financial liabilities 12
Borrowings - 0.67 .34
Provisions 13 3.79 3.58 1.83
3.79 4.25 3.17
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 14
Trade payables 25,58 25.89 12,37
Other financial fiabilities 34.73 2093 18,54
Other current liabilities s 10.28 10,36 LA
Provisions {3 3.70 3.57 2,71
74.29 60.75 41.73
Total Linbilities 78.08 65,00 44.90
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,515.78 1,457.80 1,452.63

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Jain Jindal & Co,

Firm Registration No: 025817N
Chartered Accounlam%
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For and on behall o \F:,i Board of Directors of

Director Areclor
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Pooja Gupta
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Company Secrelary

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 12, 2017

Place : New Dethi
Dale : June 12, 2017



Manakin Resorts Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
_Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue From Operations 16 437,84 374,96
Other lrcome 17 6,89 7.81
TFotal Income 444,73 382.77
LExpenses
Cosl of materials consumed 18 45,04 47,04
Empleyee benefits expense 19 113,58 104,61
Other expenses 20 184.78 171.54
Total cxpenses 343,46 323,19
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 101.33 59.58
(EBITDA)
Finance cosls 21 342 2,94
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 62.70 7212
Finance Income 23 (8.83) (2.03)
Profit/(less) before tax 44,4 113.45)
Tax expense:
{1) Current tax (7.09) -
(2) MAT credit entitlement 7.09 -
Profit/(loss) for the peried 44,04 {13.45)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not te be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequont periods:
Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 0.77 {1.47)

0.77 (1.47)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 0.77 (1.47)
praofit or loss in subscquent periods
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 0.77 (147
Total compiehensive income for the year, net of tax 44.81 {14.92)
Earnings per share : 24
{17 Basic 0.78 (0.26)
(2) Diturted 0.78 (0.26)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanrying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Firm Registration No: 625817N
Chartered Accountants

Romesh Vijay
Partner

Membership No.: 411274

Place ; New Delhi
Date : June 12,2017
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Director
Din No: 02695031

‘ Pooja Gupta
Company Secrelary

Place : New Delhi
Date ; June 12, 2017
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Manakin Resoerts Private Limited
Statement Dl.'Chanch_: in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and

Tutly paid

At Y Aprl 2018

At 31 March 2016
Issue of share capital
At 31 March 2017

B, Oiher Equlty
For the year ended 31 March, 2017

No, of shares A
] Rs in lakhs
5,714,280 57.14
5,714,280 57.14
5,714,280 57.14

Securities Premium
Reserve

Retained Earnings

Totat Other

equity

Rs in [akhs

Rs jn lakhs

Rs in Inkhs

Summary of siprificant accounting policies

As per oar report of even date

For Jnin Jindut & Co.
Firm Registration No: 0258{ 7
Charlered Accountants ¢

K%ij,ﬁ
Romesh Vijay
Partner
Memberskip Wo.: 411274

Place : New Dethi
Date : June 12, 2017
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Cyrus ﬁl\ werposh Madasn

Direclor
Din Ne: 02695031

e

Poojs Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : New Dethi
Date : June 12, 2017

Balonce at 1 April 2043 910.32 (74.02) 836.30

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - {14.92) {14,920

Balance af 31 Mavch 2016 910.32 {38.94) 421.37

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 44.81 44.81

Balance at 31 March 2017 210,32 (4415 866.19
2

rashant Mehentra

Direetor

in No: 07133994




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year cnded 31 March 2017

March 31, 20§7 Maurch 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs i lakhs

Operating activities '
Profit/ (Loss) before tax : 44.04 (13.45)
Adjustnients to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amorlisation expenses 62.70 7212
Finance income (inciuding fair value change in financial instruments) (1.26) {1.02)
Finance costs (including fair vahie change in financial instruments) 0.11 0.18
Pravision for gratuity 1.12 .96
Provision for leave encashmerit (0.01) .19
106.70 58.98
Working Capital Adjustment:
(17.85) 2.03

Change in trade receivables

Change in loans and advances and other current assets (15.66) (9.55)
Change in inventorics 1,94 (0.50)
Change in liabilities and provisions 13.4¢ 18.07
87.53 69.03
Income tax paid (net of refinds) 6.86 2,20
Net cash flow from eperating activities 94,39 71.23
Investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (17.29) (26.05})
{(Purchase)/sale of current investments : (87.57) (71.00)
Interest received .25 1.02
Net Cash {low used in investing activities (7.61) {96.04)
Financing activities
Repayment from long term borrowings (0.67) (0.60)
Interest paid (0.11) (0.18)
Net Cash from financing activities (0.78) (0.7%)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 20.00 (25.59)
Cush and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 39.10 64.68
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 59,10 39.10
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 0.52 0.53
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current accounts 88.58 857
50.10 39.10

Taotal cash and cash cquivalents

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our reporl of even date

For Jain Jindal & Co. For and on behalffof the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No: G25817N Manakin Resorts i\?w[,imited

Chartered Accountamfs ’
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Romesh Vijay Cyrus Mehernosh Madan Prashants¥Tehrotra
Partner Director irector
Membership No.; 411274 Din No: 02695031 Din No: 07333994
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Poeja Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Date ; June 12, 2017 Date ; June 12, 2017



Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. Corporate Information

Manakin Resorts Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at B-6/17, Safdarjung Enclave New Dethi-110029.

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc.

The financial statemenis were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 12 June 2017.

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Significant accounting policics

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015,

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 {Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 32 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost or at amortised cost except
for the following assets and liabilities:

« Net defined benefit (asset)/liability
o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated. as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the repotting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for ai least twelve months after the reporting period

e & » @

All other assels are ¢classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

o It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Itis due to be settled within twel Jmonths after the reporting period, or
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Manakin Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(b)

(©)

e There is no unconditinnﬁl right to defer the seftiement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
vealisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first quaiifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual ratc at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on setflement or transiation of monetary items are recognized in
profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreipn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose [air value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date. '

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: _
e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e I the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
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it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technicues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

" All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured of disclosed in the financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical asseis of
liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair vatlue measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the
fair value measurement is uncbsetvable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assels measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movernents in the values of assets and
fiabilities which are required to be remeasuted or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation lo contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
Jiabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)
» Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note 29)
o Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) {note 29)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
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Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Qales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account, Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behal{ of the government,
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquels and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax. Shorifall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is carried
in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VAT.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument ot a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance
income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in nnitual funds

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on transfer of
title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investments.

Taxes

Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized ouiside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current fax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combinatior: and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibie temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investiments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only lo the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on fax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax ilems are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and
equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing cosls for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met,

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recoghized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is

included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Sehedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Asscts Uscful life considered
, (SLM) 3

Plant & Machinery .15 Year
Building 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years N
Office Equipment’s 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Vehicles 8 Years :
Computers 3 Years ‘J

‘The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the usefu! tife prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act; 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
1o be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future econotnic benefits are expecled from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate,

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Comparty has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately casured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
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intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortlised on
Strajght line basis ovet its useful life,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asscl and arc
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs

Botrrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use of sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset ot CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writlen down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market trangactions are taken into account, if available. If no guch transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valvation model is used.These calculations are correborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair

value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rage is calculated and applied to project future cash
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flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projcctions in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determinge
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment josses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such teversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the assel is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions
General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation ( legal or consiructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying gconomic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some of all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes coniribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expensc, when an
employee renders the related ‘service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution aiready paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the coniribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity lability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term
compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
is done as per projected unit credit method.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the peried in which they eccur. Remeasurements aie 0ol
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent petiods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognizes the foltowing changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
» Net interest expense or income

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
lepal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels
Initial recognition and meastrement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that arc aftributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assefs are classified in following

categories:

o Debt instruments at amortized cost

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments al fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

+ Equity instruments measured at fajr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH

+ Bquity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at aniortized cost
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A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solcty -
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivabies,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Debt instrument at F¥YTOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are-measured initially as well as at
cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recoghizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument gt FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’), The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a}) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
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transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither ransferred nor retained substaniially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognize the iansferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability., The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee Over the transferred asset 18
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of. “financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the foliowing financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost .2, loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to reccive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and ind AS 13

¢) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
« All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company (o track changes In
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairiment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increasc in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, | 2-month ECL is used to provide fot
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
int a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no ionger a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then ihe entity reverts o
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which resuits from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.¢., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

o All contractual ferms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, exlension,
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call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:
¢ Financial assefs measured as at arnortised cost, contractual revenue recetvables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meels write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Loan commitments and financial puarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCL Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCl.

Financial linbilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financiai liabilities al fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized injtially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee coniracts and derivative financia} instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial Jiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or [0ss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses aitributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. AN
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other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss. '

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initia} recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the BIR method.

" Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the BIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral past of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 12,
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially differeft ferms, or the terms of an existing liability are substaniially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or foss.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atlributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, nef of tax, from the proceeds.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial asscts and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial asscts which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s SCrior
management determines change in the business model as a result of cxtesnal or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model oceurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is sigaificant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reciassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or.inferest,
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(n)

(0)

»

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted fot:

Original Revised Accounting tfreatment
c_iassiﬁcation classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognized in P&L.

FVTPL 1 Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes iis new
Cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on

the new pross carrying amount.,
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognized in OCIL No change in EIR due
to reclassification.

FVTOLI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification daie becomes its new
amortised cost  carrying  amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCL is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cosl.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amounl. No other adjustiment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification

L date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceabie legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. '

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting policies
1dentification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respeclive hotel
properties. However, since ail hotels have similarity in terms of products and services,
customer classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment, the
individual hotels qualify for aggregation. Thus, the management has considered aggregating
all the hotels as one reportable operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these
financial statements relate to the Company’s single operating segment.

Recent accounting pronouncentents

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the daie of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these
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(@)

standards, if applicable, when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2017
and has amended the following standard.

Amendment to Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application
of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April
2017. Application of this amendments will not have any recognitior: and measurement impact.
However, it will require additional disclosure in the financial statements.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 102, Sharc-based Payment

The MCA has issued amendments to Ind AS 102 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction, the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settiement features for
withholding tax obligations, and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity
settled, The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2017.
The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the cffect on the financial
statements is being evatuated. The Company will adopt these amendments from their
applicability date,

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

. The company measutes EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In

its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
inferest income, finance costs, and tax expense.
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5 Financial assets March 31, 2017 March 31,2046 April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

{a) Investments

Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Unquoted mutual funds

5648.43 Units (31 March 2016: 3382,11 , 1 April 2015: Nil 128,59 71.01 -
J of Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury Growth Pian

128.59 71.01 -

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 128.59 71.01 -

Aggregate amount of impairement in value of investments - - -

128.59 71.0¢ -

Current 128.59 71.01 -

Non-Current - - -

128.59 71.01 -

(b) Other financial assets
Securily Deposits 6.94 6.53 3.67
Non current bank balances 7.75 795 7.75
14.69 14.28 11.42
Break up of non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Security Deposits 6.94 6.53 3.67
Non current bank balances 7.75 7.75 7.75

Total non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost 14.69 14.28 11.42
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6 Other non-current assets March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2615
Rs in lakhs ~ Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tax {net of provision for taxation) C11.25 18.10 20.31
MAT credit entitlement receivable 2461 17.51 17.51
Total 35.86 35.61 37.82

Note : The Company has incurred losses during current year further there is no reasonable certainity that the Company will earn
taxable profits in future years.Accordingly deferred tax not accounted on losses and unabsorbed depreciation.

7 Inventories March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
(at lower of cost and net realisable value) Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Tood and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 0.80 0.84 0.76
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 3.65 4.55 4.13

Total 4.45 5.39 4,89
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8

)

(i)

Financial assets

Trade reccivables

Break-up for sceurity details:
Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Tmpairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Total Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks

On current accounts

Cash on hand

At March 31, 2017, the Company had available Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. Ni

Cash and Bank balances are non- interest bearing.

Cash at banks does not carn ary interest.
Cash at bank are non-interest bearing financial assets.

For the purpose of the statement of eash Mews, cash and cash equivalents camprise the following:

Balances with banks

on current accoumts

Cash on hand

Total eash and cash equivalents

{iiiy Loans

(i)

Y-

Loan to related party
{Loan to retated party is intorest fice and is repayable on demand)

Other financial assels

Securily deposils

Advances recoverable in cash
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Break up of current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Loan to related party

Trade reccivables

Cash and cash cquivalents
Security deposils

Advances recoverable in cash
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Totat current financial assets carried at amortised cest

Other current assets

Unbilted revenue

Aalance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid Expenses

Advance for supply of goods or randering of services

Total

March 31, 2016

Mareh 31, 2017

April 1 2015

Its in lnkhs Rs infakhs Rs in lakhs

25,42 7.57 9,61

25,42 7.57 9.61

25,42 7.57 9.01

25.42 7.57 9.61

2542 157 9.61

58.58 3857 631.95

0,52 0.53 0.73

59.19 39.10 64.68

L, April 1, 2015: Nif) of undrawn committed borowing

58,58 18,57 63.95

0.52 0.53 0.73

59,10 39.10 6068

440,67 440,67 440,67

440,67 440.67 440,67

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Rs in jakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lukhs
0.96 0.58 0.58
- - 0.31
5.49 4.98 4.34
6,45 5.56 5.24
440.67 440.67 440,67
2542 7.57 9.61
59,10 3910 [ENe
0.96 0.58 0.58
- - 0,31
5,49 4,98 4,34
531.64 492,90 520.19
wiarch 31, 2007 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Ry in lakbs
141 - -
1,75 4,93 210
592 4.53 .44
6.11 4.47 1.01
21.19 13,93 7.53
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18 Equity Share capital

Autherised Share Capital:- ~ No. of shares Rs in lakhs
At 1 April 2015 6,000,006 600.00
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2016 T 6,000,000 600.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year -

At 31 March 2017 ) 6,000,000 600.00

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has onty one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per shate. Rach holder of equity sharcs is
entiticd to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
rcceive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all prefercntial amounts, The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharchoiders.

Issued equily capitak:- No. of shares Rs in lakhs

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

‘At 1 April 2013 5,714,280 571.43
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2016 5,714,280 571.43
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2017 5,714,280 571.43

Shares held by holding company

Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Mo, of shares Ry in Inkhs No. of shares Rs in lakhbs
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up
PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited . 5,142,852 514.29 5,142,852 514,29
Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Na. of shares % Sharcholding  No. of shares % Sharcholding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited 5,142,852 90,00% 5,142,852 90,00%
Lemen Tree Hotels Limited 571,428 10.00% 571,428 10.00%

The Company has not issued Bonus Share, Share for consideration other than Cash and has nat bought back shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date.
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{1 Other equity
Securities Premium

At 1 April 2015
Inerease/(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2017

Retained Earnings

At 1 April 2013
Profit/(loss) for the year
At 31 March 2016
Profit/(loss) for the year
At 31 March 2017

QOther reserves
Securities Premium
Retained Eamnings

Rs in lakhs

910,32

910.32

910,32

Rsin laldis

(74.02)
14.92
(88.94)
44.31

] (44.13

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs

910,32 910.32 910,32
(4d.13) (38.94) (74.02)
866.19 82137 $36.30
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Borrowings
Non-current horrowings

‘Term Loans

Indian rupee loans from Ranks (Seeured}
Vehicle loans

Tatal non-current borrowings

Current borrowings

Term Loasis

Current maturify of long terin lonns
Vehicle loans

Total current borrowings

Less: Amount clubbed under “other curent liabilities™

Net current borrowings

Tevm loans

1) Vehigle toan is secured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicte acguired oul of such loans. R

Provislons

Provision for gratuity
Current
Non-cumment

Provision [or leave beaefils
Curzent
Nen-girrent

Tutal eurrent
Total non-current

Effective Rate of Interest (%o) Maturity  Mareh 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2005
Hs [n lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lukhs
11.25% 2017-2t18 - 067 1.34
- 0.67 1.34
11.25% 2017-2018 0.67 067 (.60
0.67 .67 .60
(67 0.6 (0.60)

ate of interest of the Yoan is 11.25%. The loan is repaid on agreed monthly installyents.

Mareh 31,2017 March 30, 2016 April 1,215
Rs in lakhs Ry in lakhs Rs in kakhs
5.16 A R1 239
1.37 1.23 Q.50
3.7 158 [
2.3 234 215
.32 234 208
m 337 271
3.79 1.58 183
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Y
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15

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
Micro and small enterprises
Other than Micro and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Bock overdraft
Outstanding dues of other creditors

Other current liabilities

Advance received from customers
Statutory Liabilitics

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Ry in kakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
25,58 25,89 12.37
25.58 25.89 12.37
0.67 0.67 0.60
13.41 5.05 4.29
20.65 15.21 13.65
34.73 20.93 18.54
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April £, 2015

Rs in fakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
6.53 8.63 3.64
3,74 1.73 4.47
10.28 10.36 8.1l
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16 Revenue From Operations

Sale of products and services
Roomn rentals

Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine)

Telephone and telex
Other Services

17 Other income

Other non-operating inceme
Tatal

18 Cost of Material Consumed

Consumption of food & beverages (excluding liguor & wine)

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: lnventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

19 Employec benefit expense

Salarics, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expenses

Total

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs " Rs in lakhs
31743 254.62
72.65 76.79
0.05 0.25
47.71 46.30
437.84 374.96

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Rsin takhs

Rs in lakhs

6.89

7.81

6.89

7.81

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
0.84 0.76
43,01 47.13
45.86 47.89
0.81 0.84
45.04 47,04

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
87.48 81,76
6.79 613
1.12 0.96
18.19 15.16
113.58 104.61




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

20 Other expenses March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 12.44 1191
Rent cxpenses 3.92 3.21
Power and fuel 50.23 50.32
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 6.60 6.50
Guest fransportation 8.45 £.02
Spa cxpenses 5.56 7.34
Subscription charges 1.13 0.19
Repair and maintenance ‘

- Buiidings 14,18 6,95
- Plant and machinery . 575 8.00
- Others 12.89 7.76
Rates and laxes 5.79 10.73
Insurance : 0.28 4.69
Communication costs 3.88 3.90
Printing and stalionery 2,18 1.60
Traveling and conveyance 6.09 4.21
Vehicle running and maintenance (.42 0.47
Advertisement and business promotion 11.82 8.82
Commission -other than sole selling agent 0.17 0.35
Securily and cleaning expenses 10.89 7.92
Legal and professional fecs : 4.37 3.01
Payment to auditors 0.25 0.60
Miscellaneous expenses 11.49 15.03
Total 184.78 171.54

Payment to auditer

As a anditor 0.25 .50
Other services - 0.10
0.25 0.60
21 Finance cost March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
[nterest
On vehicle loans 0.11 0,18
On income tax 0.00 0.00
Bank charges {including commission on credit card collcetion) 3.310 2,76
Total 3.42 2.94
22 Depreciation and Amortization Expense March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Deepreciation of tangible assots 62.38 71.79
Amortization of intangible assets 0.32 0.32
Total 62.70 72.12
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24

Finance income March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Ry in lakhs

Rs in Iakhs

Interest [ncome on ;

Bank Deposits 0.57 0.70
Others 0.69 0.32
Fair value loss on financial instraments at fair value through profit or loss 7.57 1.01
8.83 2.03

Earnings Per Share (Basic And Diluted)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attribulable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
Equily shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equily shares that would be issued on conversion of all the

dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following dala reflects the inputs to caleulation of basic and diluted EPS

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Profit after Tax (Rs in akhs) 44.81
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 5,714,280
Basic & Diluted EPS 0.78

(14.52)
5,714,280
£0.26)
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, CXpenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncerfainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant
judgment and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assuinplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that bave a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial staiements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future deveiopments, however, may chanpe
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance shect cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value 1s measured using other
valuation technigques. The inputs fo these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is- based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF modei, The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activitics that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that wiil enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used
for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for

extrapolation purposes.
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Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortatity rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response io demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future infiation rates for the respective
countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 26.

26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2017  March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Gratuity plan 5.16 4.81 239
Total 5.16 _ 481 2.39

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary
at retirement age. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of
accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.
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Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended M

arch 31, 2017

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the
below:

March 31, 2017

Company’s plans are shown

March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Discount rate: %
Pension plan ‘ 6.70%
Future salary increascs: )

Pension plan 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years
Pension plan

Male 60
Female 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 3
India gratuity plan:

March 31, March 31,

Yo %
7.60% 7.70%
5,00% 5.00%
Years Years

60 60

6l 60

1, 2017 is as shown below:

March 31, March 31,
2017 2017 2017 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% dccerease
Impact on defined benefit
. 0.15 0.16 0.16 0.15
obligation
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2016 2016 2016
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
(.14 0.15 0.15 : 012

obligation

The scnsitivity analyses above have been determined based on a methed that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period.
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The following payments arc expected contributions to the defined bencfit plan in future years:

Rs. In lakhs

Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
1 1.42 ' 1.27
2 110 1.08
3 0.87 0.87
4 0.69 (.70
5 0.55 0.55
Above S 1.87 1.82
Total expected payments 6.50 6.29

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2016: 5 years).

27, Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exceuted on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2017, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2016: Rs NIL, April 1, 2015: Rs
21.91Lac)

h. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Rs. In lakhs

As at March | AsatMarch | Asat March
31,2017 31, 2016 31, 2015
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issucd by
company’s bankers 775 7.75 7.75
b. |Differential amount of custom duty including interest on goods 16.44 16.44 16.44
imported
¢, |Luxury Tax 2013-14 5.97 - -
d. [Kerala -Value Added Tax 2011-12 0.51 - -
e. |Kerala -Value Added Tax 2012-13 4.51 - -




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

28. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have
Occurred or not

Ultimate Holding company Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Holding Company PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limiied
b} Other related parties

Fellow subsidiary companies Nightingale Hotels Private Limited
Metingue Hotels Private Limited
Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Hyacinth Hotcls Private Limited
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr. Prashant Mchrotra (Director)
Mr. Cyrus Mehernosh Madan (Director)

¢) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place
during the year: e

Company Secretary : Ms. Pooja Gupta
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Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and scttlement occurs
in cash. For the ycar ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not recorded any impairment of reccivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2016: Rs. Nii, April 1, 2015: Rs.Nil). This asscssment
is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market

in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

20, Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values;

Financial assets

Other Financial Assets
Trade Receivable

Cash and cash equivalent
Loans

Investments

Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payable

Other financial liabilities
Total

Carrying value

Fair value

Rs. In .’wf(hs

stMarg7 TN g ppes M 3 Marls OLApr-ls

21.14 19.84 16.66 21,14 19.84 16.66
25.42 7.57 9.61 25.42 7.57 961
59.10 39.10 64.68 59.10 39.10 64.68
440.67 44067 440.67 440.67 440,67 440.67
128.59 71.01 - 128.59 71.01 :
674.92 578.19 53161 674.92 578.19 53161
0.00 0.67 1.34 0.00 0.67 124
25.58 25.89 12.37 25.58 25,89 12.37
34.73 20.93 18.54 34.73 20.93 18.54
60.31 47.49 32.25 60.31 47.49 32.25
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Fair value measurement

a. Financial instruments by category

Rs. In lakhs

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Loans - 440.67 - 440.67 - 440.67
Trade Receivables - 2542 - 7.57 - 9.61
Security Deposits - 7.90 - 7.11 - 4.25
Other bank balances - 1.75 - 7.75 - 7.75
Interest accrued on
fixed deposits - 5.49 - 4.98 - 4.66
Cash and Cash - 59.10 . 39.10 . 64.68
Equivalents
Investments in
Mutual Funds 128.59 ) 71.01 i ) i
Fotal Financial 128.59 546.33 71.01 507.18 - 531.61
Asscts

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

FVTPL | Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Liabilities '
Borrowings - 0.67 - 1.34 - 1.94
Trade Payables - 25.58 - 25.89 - 12.37
Other financial - 34.05 ) 20.26 " 17.94
liabilities
Total Financial - - -
Liabilities 60.30 47.49 32.25

. Fair value measurement hierarchy for asscts and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and Habilities measured at fair value into one ol three levels depending on the
ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i} Levell

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or tiabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices inciuded within level
1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3
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Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to obscrvable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assels and liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVTPL
Unquoted Mutual Funds 128.59 ] ) 128.59

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 20106
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVTPL
Unquoted Mutual Funds 71.01 i )} 7101

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FVTPL

Unquoted Mutual Funds

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade rcceivables, trade payables, bank
overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and other current
financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term matutities of these
instruments.

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprisc loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabifities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations,
The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other reccivables, and cash & cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a financial risk
committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the
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Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies tor managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of futurc cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and
payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiat instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company
is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company cxpecis the variable rate to decline,
accordingty the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

March 31, .
y 2 April 1, 2015
2017 March 31, 2016 pril 1,
Variable rate borrowings - . .
Fixed rate borrowings 0.67 1.34 [.94

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custemer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its opcrating activitics
(primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activitics, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other finuncial instruments,

Trade receivables and Security Deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of cach customer is assessed and credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer reccivables and security
deposits are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual basis.
In addition, a farge number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous group and assesscd for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in notec 29. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Liquidity risk
The company's principal source of liquidity is cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
generated from operations, The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company belicves that
the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
perceived
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As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of Rs. 611.58 lakhs including cash and cash
equivalents of Rs. 59.10 lakhs., As of March 31, 2016, the Company had the Company had a working
capital of Rs 522,48 lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs  39.10 lakhs.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an cxposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business location subject to the Company's cstablished policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
asscssed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the asscssment both in terms of

number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. in
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 29. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(b} Financial instruments and cash dcposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are madce only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to cach counterparty. The Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is the

carrying amount as illustrated in Note 29,

Rs. In lakhs

Ageing March 31, March 31, March 31,
2017 2016 2015
Not due -

0-60 days past duc 20.98 5.40 9.45
61-120 days past due 2.92 1.73 -
121-180 days past due 0.63 0.28 -
180-365 days past due 0.45 - -
365-730 days past dus 0.29 - 0.16

more than 730 days 0.15 0.16 -

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Rs. In lakhs

Ageing March 31, | March 31, March 31,

2017 2016 2015
Gross carrying amount ' 25.43 7.57 9.61
Expected credit losses - - -
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 25.43 7.57 9.61
impairment)




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the futurc cash flows. The Company's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company asscssed the concentration of risk with respect
to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be fow. The Company has access to a sufficicnt variety of sources of
funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months
Year ended
March 31, 2017
Borrowings - 0.17 0.30 - 0.67
Trade and other payables 25.58 - - - 25.58
Other financial liabilities 34,06 - - . 34.06
59.64 0.17 0.50 - 60.31
Year ended
March 31, 2016
Borrowings - 0.16 0.51 0.67 1.34
Trade and other payables 25.89 - - - 25.89
Other financial liabilities 20.26 - - - 20.20
46.15 0.16 0.51 0.67 4749
As at April 1, 2015
Borrowings - 0.12 0.48 1.34 1.94
Trade and other payabies 12.37 - . - 12.37
Other financial liabilities 17.96 - - - 17.96
30.33 0.12 0.48 1.34 32.27

31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issucd cquity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the cquity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio betwcen 20% and 80%. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash cquivalents.
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March March April

31,2017 31,2016 1,2015
Borrowings ( Note 12) ‘ - 067 1.34
Trade payables (Note 14) 25.58 25.89 12.37
Other financial liabilities 34.73 20.93 18.54
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 8) 59.10 39.10 64.68
Net debt 1.21 8.39 (32.43)
Total capital . 1,437.62 1,392.80 1,407.73
Capital and net debt 1,438.83 1,401.19 §,375.30
(Gearing ratio 0.08% 0.60% {2.36)%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2017 and 31 March 2016,

32. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group preparced
its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companics
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP),
Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods
ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March
2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements,
the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind
AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial
statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 and the financial statemeats as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain cxemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

¢ Property Plant & Equipment - As permitted by IND AS 101, the Company has clected to continue with the
catrying values under previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant & equipment. The Same sclection
has been made in respect of Intangibles Assets. The Carrying value of property plant and equipment as
aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with thosc made for the same dates in
accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policics) apart from
impairment of financial asscts based on expected credit loss model where application of Indian GAAP did not
require estimation,
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Manakin Resorts Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

-Reconciliation of retained earnings as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 (date of transition to Ind

AS)

{ Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Retained Profit for the Retained Profit for the
earnings (Mar year earnings year
15) {Mar 16)
Balance as per Indian GAAP (74.02) (15.93) {89.95) 37.24
- Opening Ind AS Current year Total Current year
BS adjustments adjustments adjustments
On account of income booked on 1.01 1.01 7.57
fair valuation of current '
investments
Total Added - 1.01 1.04 7.57
Net impact - 1.01 1.01 7.57
Balance as on 31st March 2016 {(74.02) {14.92) (88.94) 44.81
as per Ind AS
Balance as per Note No.11 (74.02) L.(14.92) (88.94) 44,81




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Particulars Previous GAAP | Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue From Operations 374.96 - 374.96
Other Income 7.81 - 7.81
Total Income 382.77 - 382.77
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 47.04 - 47.04
Employee benefits expense 106.08 (147 104.61
Other expenses 171,54 - 171.54
Total expenses 324.66 {1.47) 323.19
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 8.1 147 59.58
amortisation

(EBITDA)

Finance costs 2.94 - 2.94
Depreciation and amortization expense 72.12 - 72.12
Finance Income (1.02) (1.0} (2.03)
Profit/(loss) before tax (15.93) 2.48 (13.45)
Tax expense:

(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred tax

Profit/(Loss) for the period , (15.93) 2.48 (1345

Other comprehensive income - -

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans - (1.47) (1.47)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - -
profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (15.93) 1.01 (14.92)
{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)

Earnings per equity share: -

(1) Basic (0.28) - (0.26)

(2) Diluted (0.28) - (0.26)




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit or loss for the
year ended March 31, 2016

IL

III.

Iv.

Financial Assets

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losscs. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been
determined based on Expected Loss medel (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company impaired its
trade receivable by INR NIL on 1 April 2015 which has been eliminated against retained camings.
Further during the yecar ended March 31, 2016 the Company has impaired the reecivables amounting
to INR NIL and considered the impairment loss of INR NIL Consequently for the year ended March
31, 2016, other expenses have been reduced by INR NIL

Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of investments in mutual funds arc recorded at fair
value whereas under Indian GAAP, the Company had recorded the aforesaid investments at cost or
market value which ever was lower. Therefore financial assets has been increased by Rs. 1.01 lakhs as ai
March 31, 2016 and Rs. Nil as at April 1, 2015 Consequently for the year ended March 31, 2016, the
Finance income has been increased by Rs, 1.01 lakhs.

Peferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses
on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires
entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base.
The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary
differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Defined benecfit liabilitics

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related to its post-employment
defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the cntire cost, including actuarial
gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
an the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognized immediately in the balance shect with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL Thus the cmployee benefit cost is
increased by 0.77 lakhs and Remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefil plans of Rs, 0,77 lakhs

have been recognized in the OCILL
Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately.
Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further,
Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS- 1

Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash
flows.




Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2017

33. The details of Specified Bank Notes {SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th
November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:

Rs. In lakhs
SBNs Other Total
denomination
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 08
November 2016 0.44 0.11 0.55
(+) Permitted receipts - 5.01 5.01
(-} Permitted payments - 2.80 2.80
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 0.44 0.28 0.72
Closing cash in hand as on 30
December 2016 - 2.04 2.04

34. Segment Reporting

Hoteliering business is the company’s only business segment and domestic operations is the only
geographical segment and hence disclosure of segment wise information is not applicable under Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments”,

35, The Company’s holding company has confirmed that it shall provide continuing financial support
to the Company to pay off its debts, as and when they fail due. Accordingly, these financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

36. Supplementary Statutory Information

Rs. In lakhs
36.1 | Earnings in foreign carrency (Receipt basis) March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Room, Restaurant and other services 64.14 44,84
64.14 44.84
Rs. In lakhs

36.2 | Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual basis) March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

Commission / Advertisement and business promotion 11.11 6.14
11.11 6.14

/»*”“‘“%

ywda/

[
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Manakin Resorts Private Limited ,
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

37. Details of dues to Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

March3l, | March3l, | March3l1,
2017 2016 2015
the principal amount and the interest duc thereon remaining unpaid Nil Nil Nil
to any supplier as at the cad of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of scction 16 of Nil Nil Nil
the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplicr
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under Micro Smali and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006.
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil Nil
cach accounting year; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil Nil
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues ag
above are actually paid to the small enterpriscfor the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditurc under section 23 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
As per our report of even date
For Jain Jindal & Co. For and on bz]@f of the Board of Directors of
Tirm Registration No. 025817N Manakin Re yorts Private Limited
Chartered Accountants o i
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Romesh Vijay Cyrus Méhernosh Madan Pyrashant Mehrotra
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